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Cumberland and Potomac Cement Mill
One-half mile east of Pinto

The Cumberland and Potomac Cement Mi11 was constructed
in 1891 along the tracks of the Baltimore and Ohio Railroad
east of Pinto. The only remaining structure at the site
is a large stone kiln. Other buildings apparently included
a warehouse and the millhouse. The mill had a capacity to
produce 600 barrels of cement daily. Locally mined 1imestone
and "cement rock" were burned into natural hydraulic cement.
It was in operation as late as 1910.

The Kiln is a large rectangular stone structure coursed
rock-faced ashlar sandstone. Ten furnaces on the south-
eastern side of the structure are semicircular openings
with semicircular stone arches. Although most of the complex
is in ruins the stone kiln stands as a reminder of a once
productive industry.
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The Cumberland and Potomac Cement Mill is located
approximately 300 feet north of the Baltimore and Ohio
Railroad one-half mile east of Pinto.

The only remaining portion of this industrial
complex is the cement kiln. The kiln is a rectangular
stone structure built into a bank. Wall construction
is of large blocks of coursed rock-faced ashlar sandstone.
On the eastern face of the kiln are ten arched furnace
openings with semicircular stone arches with keystones.
Wall features include round tie rod anchors and a wooden
beam which apparently supported a roof above the furnaces.
A top the structure are round flues half of which are 1lined
with brick and the others with stone. The stone lined flues
are in a deteriorated condition.

The ruins of a brick warehouse are located immediately
north of the railroad tracks. This building was surrounded
by stone retaining walls which are intact. Located among
the rubble are many keystone-shaped portions of grindstones.
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The Cumberland and Potomac Cement Company began

operations near the Potomac River at Pinto in 1891. (1)

In 1890 Anderson Hixon leased some farmland from Thornton
McKenzie and Rebecca Rawlings on which to prospect for
cement rock and 1ime rock. The detailed fifty-year leases
provided for the mining and manufacturing of cement, the
construction of a siding from the adjacent Baltimore and
Ohio Railroad, and the acquisition of a five acre tract

to be the site of a "Cement Mi11, Kilns, Offices, houses

for employees, warehouses, and anyother ships or buildings...

Another stipulation of the leases protected cultivated
bottom land and timber on the McKenzie farm from harm.
McKenzie and Rawlings also demanded royalties of two cents
per barrel of cement manufactured and five cents per ton
of unfzn;shed cement rock or T1ime rock shipped from the
site. (2

These strict leases were conveyed by Hixon to the
Cumberland and Potomac Cement Company on April 14, 1891
the day that the company was incorporated as a cement manu-

facturer. (3) In July, 1900 the company filed a confirmatory

Tease with the heirs of Thornton McKenzie which stated that
the company was then "doing business as a cement company
near Pinto." (4)

A 1910 survey of Maryland's limestone resources and
related industries described the iperation of this cement
mill. Raw materials obtained from the cement beds of the
Cayuga formation were burned into natural hydraulic cement.
The capacity of the mill was fixed at six hundred battels
of cement a day, and it was also capable of producing
Portland cement. (5) The report went on to say that:

" The plant would be at a disadvantage in being
situated further from the principal markets of
the state than some of its competitors, but it
would control the western Markets of Maryland

(cont.)
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and adjoining sections of West Virginia and
Pennsylvania, and would have an advantage over
the other works located further east, in the
matter of fuel."(6)

The company was operating the mill as late as 1910.(7)
Although there is no evidence of exactly when the company
ceased operations it could be assumed that the modernization
of the B & 0 Railroad later in the second decade of the twentieth
century made the mines adjacent to the track inaccessible putting
the company out of business.

. The only structure standing at the site is the cement
kiln The brick warehouse which was next to the railroad is
in ruins. It seems as though the offices and houses for employees
referred to in the original lease of the property were never built.(8)
The kilnis a large rectangular structure of coursed rock-faced
ashlar sandstone built into a bank. Ten furnaces are semicircular
arched openings with semicircular stone arches. Although most
of the complex is in ruins the stone cement kiln stands as a
reminder of a once productive industry.

(1) Edward BennettMatthews and John Sharshall Grasty, The Limestones
of Maryland (Baltimore: John Hopkins Press, 1910) p454

(2) ATTegany County Land Records, Liber 69, Folio 247 and Liber 69, Folio 273

(3) Allegany County Land Records Liber 70, Folio 20 and Allegany County Certificate
of Incorporation Liber 1, Folio 207

(4) Allegany County Land Records, Liber 87, Folio 351

(5) The Limestones of Maryland, pp. 454-455

(6) Tbid, p.457

(7) Ibid

(8) ATTegany County Land Records, Liber 69, Folio 247 and Liber 69, Folio 273
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= IR Sandsfore

. () OTHER: Coverings

WALL FEATURES: Belt Course, Pilasters, Othersﬁ %a{éy,ojlﬂj ﬁ(’am 7/;/‘ rq,f\
FOUNDATIONS: High, Low, Brick, Stone

VIATER TABLE: None, Plain, Beveled, Moulded Brick
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/ /
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